
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 26, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  
GoToMeeting 


Present:  
Schumacher, Reeves, Hirsch, Engelberger (arrived at 6:22 pm), Doom, Mayor Swadley 


Absent Excused:  
Neigum 


Also Present:  
Finance Director Friedl, Planning Director Scheel 


Call to Order:  
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m.  


Communications: 


None.  


Reports: 


• September Treasurer’s Report 
• October 15, 2021 Contingency Report 
• September 30, 2021 Financial Statements 
• September 30, 2021 YTD CIP Report 
 


Approval of the October 18, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes  
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve the October 18, 2021 minutes. Motion carried 5-
0. 


 
Discussion and possible action regarding Stafford Rosenbaum’s proposed rates for 2022 
Hirsch asked to have a multiyear proposal to avoid excessive annual increases in rates and 
ensure longevity. Once received this item will come back to Finance for further discussion.  
 
Discussion and possible action regarding next steps in pursuing recovery of NAFA’s 
default on the increment guarantee amount owed to the City 
Motion by Doom to engage Stafford Rosenbaum to confirm NAFA has not yet sought US 
recognition of the Canadian reorganization proceedings and bring back to Finance for further 
discussion, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 6-0. 


Adjournment:  
Motion by Doom, second by Reeves to adjourn at 6:45 p.m. Motion carried 6-0. 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Jamin Friedl, Finance Director  







 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\11-23-2021\Minutes\Plan Com Minutes  10-11-21.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, October 11, 2021 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Phil Caravello; Todd Barman; Tom Majewski; 
and Tom Robinson 
Members Absent: Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair and Al Farrow 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Rob Hostrawser; Trisha Brown; Colette Spranger  
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of September 13, 2021.   


Motion by Majewski to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   Motion carried 
4-0 (Barman abstained). 
 


3. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the Common Council had first readings for Ordinance 20 and 21 and 
approved Resolutions 148, 149 and 150. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 
Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments as outlined in the packet. 


 
Mayor Swadley stated several downtown properties are under new ownership and he 
anticipates future requests coming for those new uses. 
 


5. Request by Arlin Teigen for extra-territorial land division approval at 1069 Taylor 
Lane, Town of Dunkirk. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request. 


 
Barman questioned the need for hardship related to the 2.5 acre limit.  
 
Rob Hostrawser stated this is related to a land swap where he is trading these acres for some 
land in the City on Isham Street.  Hostrawser stated it could be viewed as honoring the 
Teigen family who were the original owners and the added acres squares off the land area to 
aid in future development. 
 
Majewski stated the land does not square off along the north property line.  Scheel stated the 
CSM shows the land square with the adjacent property and the colored map shown was 
provided by Dane County. 


 
Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the land division request 
as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
10/11/21 
Page 2 of 2 
 


\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\11-23-2021\Minutes\Plan Com Minutes  10-11-21.docx 


 


6. Request by Trisha Brown for approval of front wall signage at 208 W. Main Street. 
Scheel introduced the request. 


 
Barman questioned if the proposed banner will look like the rendering and how long will the 
temporary banner be placed. 
 
Trisha Brown stated she is looking into a metal type sign and the banner is planned to be 
used for 30 days. 
 
Barman stated he likes the design so he would support a permanent sign with that design. 
 
The group discussed whether a banner or vinyl sign should be allowed for an extended period 
and whether to approve the sign on a temporary basis. 
 
Stacey stated code allows a banner to be placed on a building front for up to 30 days without 
a permit and after that the banner is treated like a wall sign which requires a permit. 
 
The Commission would like the applicant to come back with plans for a permanent sign. 
 
No action taken. 
 


7. Future agenda items. 
Scheel stated he expects requests coming for the KPW commercial lots. 
 


8. Adjournment. 
Motion by Barman to adjourn at 6:26 pm, 2nd by Majewski.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 


 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael P. Stacey 







River and Trails Task Force Minutes 
Monday, September 13, 2021 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Present:  Dan Glynn, Joni Dean, Sandra Black, Bob Diebel, Jim Killian, Jon Lewis. 
Guests: Phil Caravello 
 
CALL TO ORDER 


1.  Call to order by Sandra at 1735. 
2. July 12, 2021 Minutes: Approved by Bob with a second by Jon. 
3. Communications: 


a.  Yahara River Park Update:  Dan referred to information in the packet including 
water surface elevation changes.  There is a video posted on the website and R&D 
explains it. Dan explained the schedules of phasing.  There is a new grant 
opportunity through Covid relief funds based out of Chicago including surrounding 
states like Wisconsin with a total of 86 million dollars.  The earlier you apply, the 
better for obtaining funds.   There is also $138,000 through Federal Grant Funds 
available.  Phase 1 will start in the spring and is all permitted.   


 
OLD BUSINESS 


4.   Interpretive Signs:  Dan shared options of different signs.  There is $5000 in the budget 
for new signage next year.  Dan sent a letter to the Ridge Street property owners about 
the easement that he has done for the last 3-4 years without any response.   


 
NEW BUSINESS 


5.  2022-26 CIP Trail Project:  Dan shared a map of the County B area with the parking lot. 
6. Future Agenda Items: None. 


 
ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting was adjourned at 1816. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Joni Dean 







Meeting of:  Sustainability Committee Minutes 


Date/Time: Monday, September 27, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  


Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  


https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/164921765  


Access Code: 164-921-765                                      


Members Present Ben Heili, Rachel Venegas, Rich Morris, Gwen Drury, John Hallinan, Donelle Scaffidi, 
Denise Duranczyk, Brady Troeller, Scott Taylor, Yvonne Meichtry 


Guests- Brett Hebert, Amy Wanek, Michelle Probst 


Excused- Stephan Jackson 


Call to Order: by Chairperson Venegas 6:02 pm 


Approve August 23, 2021 minutes  
Motion to approve August 23, 2021 minutes by Duranczyk, seconded by Heili  
Motion carried unanimously 


Communications-Dane County Rain Barrel event October 23rd at Garver Mill 


Survey update-Donelle Scaffidi introduction of Michelle Probst from UW Extension 


Presentation from Brett Hebert Stoughton Public Works Director 


Goals/Purpose of committee-Committee will define scope of work at future meeting 


Review of McFarland Plan/ Monona Plan-discussion regarding sustainable plan, 
communication/education and work groups to focus guidelines and principles 


 


Future Agenda Items- next meeting October 25, 2021 


Goals/Purpose 


Review other community plans 


Survey 


Adjourn-Motion to Adjourn by Duranczyk, seconded by Hallinan  


Motion carried unanimously at 8:04 p.m. 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/164921765





Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday October 14, 2021 @ 5:00 PM 
Virtual Meeting -  Stoughton, WI 
 
Members Present:  Kevin Short, Mike Point, Fred Hundt, Jim Fitzgibbon, Dean Tangeman, Aaron Mazzone & 
Kathy Engelberger 


Absent & Excused:   


Staff:    City Forester John Kemppainen and Admin Asst. Jen Wagner 


Guest:  


Call to order:  Tangeman called to order @ 5:04 PM  


 
1) Communications:  


Hundt wanted to mention what a successful turn out it was for getting the trees handed out to 
residents last month. 
Kemppainen informed everyone that Public Works got a new chipper today since the old one 
was 10-15 years old.  
 


2) Approval of minutes from June 10th, 2021 Meeting:  Motion by Tangeman, seconded by Hundt to 
approve the minutes.  Carried 7-0. 


 
 


3) September Forestry Reports:  Kemppainen stated: 
       
• The trees for the DNR Urban Forestry Grant were distributed to residents for plating in 


September. 38 of the 40 trees survived in the gravel bed. 
• Tree inventory updates continued in September. The area being updated this summer is south 


of US-51 and east of Page St. This are will be trimmed this coming winter 
• He visited Arthur Weiler Nursery to select trees for the fall tree planting program this year. 89 


trees were purchased for planting throughout the city, the majority of which are being planted 
in front of new homes and businesses.  


• The Lead Service Replacement Project being completed by SU is ongoing and continues to 
require multiple site visits per week to discuss tree issues. 


• Several residents were notified of code violations for dead/dying/dangerous trees in 
September. Moving forward, Public Works Department will be responsible for notifying 
residents of these code violations instead of the Planning Department. This will mean more 
time spent by the Forestry Division on these matters in the future.   


 
 
4)  NEW BUSINESS: Tree Commission Attendance & Activity:   


 
• Tangeman stated the last three meetings have had to be cancelled due to lack of quorum so he 


wanted to guage the interest in continuing with this Commission.  
 


Motion by Hundt, seconded by Mazzone to keep the Tree Commission. Motion carried 7-0 
 


 
 
5) Elect Chair:   


 







• Engelberger volunteered to be the Chair 
 


Motion by Hundt, seconded by Tangeman to elect Engelberger as Chair. Motion carried 7-0 
 


 
6) Elect Vice-Chair:   


 
• Hundt volunteered to be Vice-Chair 


 
Motion by Engelberger, seconded by Tangeman to elect Hundt as Vice-Chair. Motion carried 7-0 
 
7) Future Agenda Items: 


 
• Continue work on local Legacy Tree Program 
• Discuss possible grants for 2023 
• Discuss possible Arbor Tree locations to plant 


 
   
 
Motion by Tangeman seconded by Hundt to adjourn the meeting at 5:45 p.m.  Respectfully submitted 10/15/21, Jen Wagner -     
Staff  





		1-10-26-21 Finance Committee Minutes

		Plan Com Minutes  10-11-21

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, October 11, 2021 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting



		River and Trails Task Force Minutes September 2021

		Sustainability Committee minutes 9-27-21

		TC Min October 14, 2021






Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Date//Time:       Tuesday, November 9, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to COVID-19.  
  You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone via Zoom:  
 https://zoom.us/j/98788203406?pwd=M0VJY3RNM1NKQXp6OEZQbkpHWWlNdz09 
  Meeting ID: 987 8820 3406 
  Passcode: 001046 
  One tap mobile 
  +19292056099,,98788203406#,,,,*001046# US (New York) 
  +13017158592,,98788203406#,,,,*001046# US (Washington DC) 
  Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abCQ0O4RZs 
 
The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum Channel 981. 
 
Members:          Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch,   
  Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett   
  Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). 
The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call: 
Clerk Christen called the roll and noted 12 alders present 
 
Minutes and Reports:  The following minutes were entered into the record 


Park Recreation (8/17/21); Whitewater Park Steering Committee (8/16/21); Finance (10/12/21, 
10/18/21) 
 


Public Comment Period: none 
 


Communications and Presentations: 
• Landmarks Commissions – Historic Preservation Awards 


  1.  Historic Hale’s Dry Goods Store Façade Repair (2020 Historic Preservation Award) 
        2.  Crystal & Eric Francksen Iverson-Johnson House Dragon Restoration (2020        
       Historic Preservation Award) 


  3.  Dave Kalland – Wendt Historic Preservation Service award (2020 Wendt Historic      
       Preservation Service Award- Given for outstanding contributions to preserving the  
       historic architecture and cultural heritage of Stoughton, Wisconsin.) 


• Governor Evers' Proclamation Recognizing Election Hero Day (November 1, 2021) 
Mayor Swadley noted the proclamation and recognized the great efforts put forth by the 
clerks and election workers. 


• Lead service completion – Utilities Director Jill Weiss presented a slide display of the lead 
service project 


  


  
 



https://zoom.us/j/98788203406?pwd=M0VJY3RNM1NKQXp6OEZQbkpHWWlNdz09

https://zoom.us/u/abCQ0O4RZs

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20Channel%20981

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 
Consent Agenda 


A. October 26, 2021 Council Minutes 
B. R-162-2021- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants. 
C. R-166-2021 Appointing Tamera Braxton as agent for Pick n Save  
D. R-167-2021 Approving Class B Beer and Class C wine license transfer for Pizza Hut 
      


Motion by Heili, second by Jenson, approve the consent agenda, motion carried 12-0                 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 2022 City of Stoughton Operating Budget 
The public hearing opened up at 7:30 p.m. There were no comments from the public. The public hearing 
ended at 7:31 p.m. 
 
R -163-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to adopt the 2022 City of 
Stoughton Budget  
Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R -163-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper 
City official(s) to adopt the 2022 City of Stoughton Budget. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
 
R-164-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of  
Stoughton five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)  
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Reeves to approve R-164-2021 Authorizing and directing the proper City 
official(s) to approve the City of  Stoughton five-year (2022-2026) Capital Improvement Plan (CIP). 
Motion carried 12-0. 
 
 
R-165-2021 Setting a Special Charge for Garbage and Recycling Collection Fess for Calendar 
Year 2022  
 
Motion by Schumacher, second by Reeves to approve R-165-2021 Setting a Special Charge for Garbage 
and Recycling Collection Fess for Calendar Year 2022. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
 
Discussion and possible action regarding next steps in pursuing recovery of NAFA’s 
Default on the increment guarantee amount owed to the City.  
 
Finance Director Friedl and Attorney Dregne reviewed the case moving forward against NAFA 
and the contract. 
 
Motion by Hundt, second by Hirsch to pursue the next steps of recovery of NAFA’s Default on 
the increment guarantee amount owed to the City.  Motion carried 12-0. 







 
 
R-168-2021 Resolution to Initiate Rezoning Process based on General Development Plan 
submitted for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area Adjacent to S. Fourth  


Motion by Hirsch, second by Doom to approve R-168-2021 Resolution to Initiate Rezoning 
Process based on General Development Plan submitted for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area 
Adjacent to S. Fourth Street.  


Motion by Majewski, second by Venegas to approve the amendment to reduce the solar 
installation from 10 years to 5 years. 


Motion carried 12-0 


ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion to adjourn by Jenson, second by Majewski.  Motion carried 12-0.  9:02 p.m. 
 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 
Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 


 








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Confirming the Mayor’s Citizen Appointments to Boards, Committees, and Commissions, Pursuant to 
2-127 of the Municipal Code.
 
Committee Action: 


 
N/A  


Fiscal Impact: $-0- 
 
File Number: 


 
R-169-2021


 
Date Introduced:  


 
November 23, 2021 


WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted citizen appointment for non-standing boards, committees, and 
commissions for the 2021-2022 term; and 


WHEREAS, the appointment is as follows: 


Stoughton Landmarks 


Don Dargle 


Public Safety 


Eric Quam 


Therefore, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) confirm the Mayor’s citizen appointment to non-standing boards, committees, and 
commissions. 


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:         Override Vote 








\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\11-23-2021\06a R-170-2021 177 W. Main Street CUP 2021.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Luke Campion for an Indoor Commercial 
Entertainment (Restaurant) use at 177 W.  Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


Committee Action: Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval 5 – 0. 


Fiscal Impact: None. 
 


File Number: R-170-2021 Date Introduced:       November 23, 2021 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on November 8, 2021 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and 
reviewed the proposed conditional use permit application by Luke Campion for an Indoor Commercial 
Entertainment (Restaurant) use at 177 W.  Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan; 


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of- 
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development; 


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\11-23-2021\06a R-170-2021 177 W. Main Street CUP 2021.docx 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request by 
Luke Campion for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment (Restaurant) use at 177 W.  Main Street is hereby 
approved as presented. 
 


 
 


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote    


 
 
Mayoral Action: Accept Veto 


 
 


 


Tim Swadley, Mayor Date 
 


 
Council Action:  Override Vote    


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2021\110821\PC Info\177 W. Main Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  November 1, 2021 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the November 8, 2021 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Request by Luke Campion for Conditional Use Permit approval for an indoor commercial 
entertainment use (restaurant) at 177 W. Main Street. 
This request is to open up a new restaurant at this location.  A restaurant requires a conditional use 
public hearing process.  The resolution, application information, and staff review are provided.  Any 
exterior work including signage will require future Plan Commission approval.  A recommendation 
to Council is necessary. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/

















PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Virtual Public Hearing on Monday, November 8, 
2021 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, to consider a proposed 
conditional use permit application by Luke Campion for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment use 
(restaurant) at 177 W. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.   
 
The property is more formally described as: 
Parcel # 281/0511-082-1651-0 
Legal Description: ORIGINAL PLAT E 22 FT LOT 4 BLOCK 22 
This property description is for tax purposes. It may be abbreviated. For the complete legal description 
please refer to the deed.  
 
See additional information including location map at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
You can join the meeting via Zoom or Phone below: 
https://zoom.us/j/96711910891?pwd=S1E0aXpFMFExVEZ2Y1prdzU2dHFxdz09 
 
Phone in access:  +1 929 205 6099  Meeting ID: 967 1191 0891 Passcode: 620382 
 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 
5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any written comments will be forwarded on to the 
“Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.   
 
     
Published October 14 and 21, 2021 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
\\Sto-fs1\city-shared$\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\177 W Main Street CUP Notice 2021.doc 



https://zoom.us/j/96711910891?pwd=S1E0aXpFMFExVEZ2Y1prdzU2dHFxdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





















W Jefferson St
S 


D
iv


is
io


n 
St


W Washington St


S 
W


at
er


 S
t


S 
Pr


ai
rie


 S
t


W Washington St


E Jefferson St


S 
Fi


fth
 S


t


E Washington St


S 
Fo


rr
es


t S
t


S 
Fi


fth
 S


tMai n -P
ag


e
C


t


ZONING MAP


177







[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 


October 5, 2021 
 
Luke Campion 
208 N. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Mr. Campion: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use for Luca’s Pizza/Italian Kitchen, 177 
W. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  A public hearing for the restaurant use is planned for the Plan 
Commission meeting of November 8, 2021 of which you will receive notice.   
 
1. The property at 177 W. Main Street is zoned CB - Central Business.     


 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses such as a restaurant is permitted as a conditional use.  
Conditional use permit application submitted on October 4, 2021. 
 
We anticipate possible Common Council review/approval on November 23, 2021. 
 


2. Indoor Commercial Entertainment is defined as follows:   
Description: Indoor commercial entertainment land uses include all land uses which provide 
entertainment services primarily within an enclosed building. Outdoor seating or patio areas 
associated with a proposed indoor commercial entertainment land use shall be allowed 
subject to city approval of a site plan showing any such proposed outdoor seating or patio 
area. Such activities often have operating hours which extend significantly later than most 
other commercial land uses. Examples of such land uses include restaurants, taverns, 
theaters, health or fitness centers, all forms of training studios (dance, art, martial arts, etc.), 
bowling alleys, arcades, roller rinks, and pool halls.  The proposed use meets this 
definition.  We’ll need to know if outdoor seating is planned. 


 
3. Regulations related to Indoor Commercial Entertainment uses are as follows:  


• If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned property, no 
customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 feet, or as far as possible, 
of a residentially zoned property.  N/A 


• Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of the 
property abutting residentially zoned property (see section 78-610).  N/A 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


• Parking requirements: One space per every three patron seats or lockers (whichever 
is greater); or one space per three persons at the maximum capacity of the 
establishment; (whichever is greater).  N/A is CB district.   


 
4. Ordinance section 78-905(5)(c) provides the following criteria which the Zoning 


Administrator may use to evaluate the conditional use application to determine whether the 
request is in harmony with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan: 


 
a) Is the proposed conditional use (the use in general, independent of its location) in 


harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or 
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?   
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


b) Is the proposed conditional use (in its specific location) in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton 
comprehensive plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?  
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


c) Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the 
required site plan (see subsection (4)(d), above), result in a substantial or undue 
adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property 
or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general 
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result 
of the implementation of the provisions of this chapter, the comprehensive plan, or 
any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant 
to official notice by the city or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to 
guide development?  We do not see any substantial or major adverse impacts 
related to the restaurant use. 


d) Does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property?  The use is consistent with the Central Business zoning classification.     


e) Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities 
or services provided by public agencies serving the subject property?  The use 
should not impose a burden on utilities or services.   


f) Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use (as identified in 
subsections 1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration the applicant's 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts? No adverse impacts have been identified. 


 
5. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates the property as Planned Business, 


which is consistent with this request.  This request appears to be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 







[- 3 -] 
 


 
6. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and zoning permit prior to installation.    


Plan Commission approval is necessary prior to any changes to the exterior including 
signage. 


 
7. State plan approval will likely be necessary for the change of use and for interior remodeling. 
 


 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
   
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\173-177 w main street\cup 10.4.21\cup review 10.5.21.doc 







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2021\Plan Com Minutes  11-08-21.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, November 8, 2021 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 
Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair; Phil Caravello; 
Tom Majewski; and Tom Robinson 
Members Absent: Al Farrow and Todd Barman 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning and Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning 
Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Luke Campion; Susan Burgard; Konner Kearney; Chuck McMillan and Colette 
Spranger 
 
1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 


 
2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 11, 2021.   


Motion by Majewski to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.   Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


3. Council Representative Report.  Caravello stated Council approved O-20 and 21 on 
Oct 12th and R-159 on Oct 26th. 
 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments.  Scheel gave an overview of the 
status of developments as outlined in the packet.  There were no questions. 
 


5. Request by Luke Campion for Conditional Use Permit approval for an Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant) at 177 W. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 
Luke Campion was available for questions. 
 
Motion by Caravello to recommend Council approval of the resolution as presented, 2nd by 
Majewski.    
 
Caravello questioned if there will be sale of whole pies and slices.  Luke Campion stated 
whole pies initially.   
 
Caravello questioned if the proposed use is for take-out and delivery only.  Luke Campion 
stated yes. 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
11/08/21 
Page 2 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2021\Plan Com Minutes  11-08-21.docx 


 


Luke Campion stated he will be seeking future approval of a new awning and signage.  
Mayor Swadley suggested Luke talk to Michael Stacey during this process. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 


6. Request by Jessica Vaughn, JSD Professional Services for approval of a Planned 
Development – General Development Plan at 2525 Jackson Street. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
No one registered to speak. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Konner Kearney of Forward Development Group gave an overview of the request. 
 
Scheel gave an overview of the GDP document, the ordinance and requested exceptions. 
 
Scheel explained the need to address parkland, park improvements and provided updated 
language as a condition of approval. 
 
Caravello would like to expand the language to include the parkland will be used to expand 
the parkland already along Oak Opening Drive. 
 
Majewski questioned the timeline for parkland dedication.  Scheel stated the intent is to not 
approve any building permits until the City has a satisfactory agreement approved by the 
Common Council on parkland and park improvements. 
 
Schumacher is concerned about density and how it will affect City services such as EMS, 
Fire and Police.  Scheel stated he can’t speak to Police, Fire or EMS services.  Mayor 
Swadley stated there will be future discussions about what those impacts mean. 
 
Mayor Swadley asked Konner Kearney what he is seeing around Dane County for residential 
trends.  Konner Kearney stated the current trend is for multi-family residential. 
 
Tom Robinson arrived at 6:34 pm. 
 
Majewski and Schumacher would like to hear from the EMS Director, Police Chief and Fire 
Chief regarding the proposed density and how it will affect services. 
 
Motion by Schumacher to Table the request until the next meeting to allow the EMS 
Director, Police Chief and Fire Chief to respond to the propose density and how it may affect 
their services, 2nd by Majewski .   Motion carried unanimously. 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight





		06a R-170-2021 177 W. Main Street CUP 2021

		06b 177 W. Main Street CUP

		ADP7DDB.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, November 8, 2021 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting










\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\11-23-2021\07a O-23-2021-Ordinance re park impact fees and fees in lieu of land dedication (May 26, 
2021).docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Repealing and Recreating Sections 66-1101 (1) and (2), 67-3, and 67-5 of the Stoughton Municipal 
Code Relating to land dedication requirements, monies in lieu of land dedication, and park impact 


fees. 


Committee Action:    Parks & Recreation Committee recommends approval  4 – 0 
Finance Committee recommends 7 – 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -23- 2021 Date Introduced:  November 23, 2021 
December 14, 2021 


 
The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


1. Sections 66-1101 (1) and (2) of the Stoughton Municipal Code are amended to provide as follows: 
 
(1)  Land dedication requirement.  After consultation with the parks and recreation committee, the plan 


commission shall determine whether the dedication of land for parks or monies in lieu thereof will 
better serve the public interest.  Where land is to be dedicated, 1,468 square feet of land shall be 
dedicated for each single family dwelling, 1,019 square feet of land shall be dedicated for each 
dwelling unit in a two-family or multi-family development, and 528 square feet of land shall be 
dedicated for each dwelling unit in a Group Quarters.  For purposes of this section, “Group Quarters” 
has the meaning set forth in section 67-3.  These dedication requirements are based on the Park 
Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication and Public Facility Needs Assessment dated March 8, 
2021 by Baker Tilly US, LLP. 


 
(2)  Monies in lieu of land dedication.  The amount of any fee imposed under this section shall be $2,674 
for each single family dwelling, $1,838 for each dwelling unit in a two-family or multi-family 
development, and $952 for each dwelling unit in a Group Quarters.  Such fees are based on the Park 
Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication and Public Facility Needs Assessment dated March 8, 2021 
by Baker Tilly US, LLP.   
 


2. Section 67-3 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended by adding the following definition, in 
alphabetical order, within the existing definitions in section 67-3: 
 
Group Quarters. A facility containing multiple dwelling units where an organization or entity provides 
services that include but are not necessarily limited to custodial services, medical care, and other types of 
assistance, where residency is restricted to individuals receiving the services, such as a skilled nursing 
facility. 
 


3. The title to Section 67-5 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is amended to provide as follows: 
 
Sec. 67-5 – Impact fees for park land acquisition, park facilities improvements, and trails. 
 


4. Section 67-5 (b) of the Stoughton Municipal Code is repealed and recreated to provide as follows: 







\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\11-23-2021\07a O-23-2021-Ordinance re park impact fees and fees in lieu of land 
dedication (May 26, 2021).docx 


 
(b) The amount of the fee per residential dwelling unit to be constructed or created by the proposed 
development, subject to adjustment pursuant to section 67-6 below, shall be as follows: 


 
1) For single-family residential development, the fee shall be $3,741 for park facilities 


improvements, $89 for trails, and $2,647 for park land acquisition. 
 
2) For two-family and multi-family development, the fee shall be $2,597 for park facilities 


improvements, $62 for trails, and $1,838 for park land acquisition for each dwelling unit. 
 
3) For Group Quarters, the fee shall be $1,346 for park facilities improvements, $32 for trails, 


and $952 for park land acquisition for each dwelling unit. 
 
4) The fees imposed under this section for park facilities improvements and for trails shall be 


increased annually at a rate equal to the percentage change in the Engineering News record 
Construction Cost Index for the period of time since the fee was last increased.  The city 
treasurer or designee shall calculate the adjusted fees and maintain a copy of the calculation 
and the adjusted impact fees in the office of the city clerk.   


 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 
Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 







PARK IMPACT FEE, FEE IN LIEU OF LAND 
DEDICATION, AND PUBLIC FACILITIES NEEDS 
ASSESSMENT 


DAN GLYNN, DIRECTOR OF PARKS & RECREATION 







WHY


• City currently charges a park impact fee and fee in lieu of land for 
public parks


• Park Development Fund – Facility Improvements & Land 


• Maintain the level of service offered to Stoughton citizens
• Currently charges park impact fee and fee in lieu of


• Parkland & Park Improvements 


• Last study completed in 2009
• Updated annually – Construction Cost Index


• Nordic Ridge Park







STATUTORY LIMITATIONS 


• Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617(6) – Standards for Impact Fees


• Per Section (6)(am), may not include amounts for an increase in service capacity greater than the 
capacity necessary to serve the development for which the fee is imposed.


• Stoughton Standards?


• Baker Tilly Study 







STUDY METHODOLOGY – SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 


• 2018 CORP 
• Need for parks, trails, and infrastructure 


• Documented parkland 


• Census Data 
• Population -13,060


• Household size per dwelling type 
• Single Family – 2.78


• Multi Family – 1.93


• Group Quarters – 1.00







STUDY METHODOLOGY – PARKLAND 


• Stoughton Standard 


• 2018 CORP – 159.12 acres of parkland 


• Census Data – 13,060 people 


• Parkland/1000 people = 12.12 acres (528 sq ft/person)


• National Standard Parkland/1000 people = 10.0 acres 







STUDY METHODOLOGY – PARKLAND 


• Land Dedication Calculation – Dwelling Unit Type Household Size X Sq Ft/person 







STUDY METHODOLOGY – FEE IN LIEU OF


• Cost standard per acre of land - $78,585


• Cost per acre of undeveloped land - $60,000 


• Grading and utilities cost per acre of land - $18,585 


• Cost per person - $952.45 


• Cost standard per acre of land X acres per person 


• $78,585 X 0.0121200 = $952.45







STUDY METHODOLOGY – PARK FACILITIES 
IMPROVEMENT FEE


• Cost Standard Per Acre


• Existing total facility improvements - $17,675,636


• Active Use Parkland – 130.66 acres


• Cost standard per acre = existing improvements/active use parkland = $135,280


• Cost per person


• Active use parkland/1000 people = 9.95 acres or 0.00995 acres per person


• Cost standard per acres = $135,280


• Cost per person = cost standard per acre x acres per person = $1,346.03 







STUDY METHODOLOGY – PARK FACILITIES 
IMPROVEMENT FEE







STUDY METHODOLOGY – TRAIL IMPROVEMENT 
FEE


• Cost standard per foot = $22.42 


• Footage per person = 1.4341203 foot per person 


• Total footage – 18,830 LF 


• Population – 13,130


• Total footage/population = footage per person 


• Cost per person = cost standard per foot x footage per person = $32.15 







SUMMARY 


• Maintain service levels of standard 


• Census and CORP data 







QUESTIONS?







 


 


 


 


 


 


Date:  October 28, 2021   


To:   Parks & Recreation Committee, Finance Committee, and City Council  


From:  Dan Glynn, Parks & Recreation Director  


Subject: Park Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication, and Public Facilities Needs Assessment  


 


Purpose 


The Park Impact Fee, Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication, and Public Facilities Needs Assessment was 
completed for the purpose to maintain the current standard level of service provided to City residents in 
regards to parkland, park infrastructure, and trails as the City grows. Due to state law, impact fees and 
Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication cannot be used as a way to increase the level of service.  


Impact fees assist in financing the capital costs associated with trails and park facility improvements. A 
fee in lieu of land dedication will continue to assist in financing the acquisition of land for public parks. 
The City currently charges a park impact fee and a fee in lieu of land for public parks. This fee is updated 
annually based on the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index. However, the previous study 
was completed in 2009 and recommended periodical updates.  


City staff became aware that the current fee structure was outdated in 2018 and 2019 when a new park 
was developed and the capital costs to develop the park far exceeded the impact fees collected. City 
staff received a recommendation from nearby Park & Recreation Directors to have a study completed by 
Carla Gogin from Baker Tilly. This was due to recent experience in completing studies in Dane County. 
The Parks & Recreation Committee recommended to City Council to hire Baker Tilly to conduct a Park 
Impact Fee Study at the May 21, 2019 meeting. This motion passed unanimously. City Council approved 
of this action unanimously at the June 11, 2019 meeting. 


 


Process & Methodology  


The City’s 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan was used as the basis for the study. Which 
established a need for the parks, trails, and subsequent need for the infrastructure. It also provided 
other data such as parkland acreage. According to the US Census, the most recent population for the 
City is 13,060. Additionally, the US Census provided persons per household for different dwelling types. 
These estimates are used in the calculations in the document 


Dan Glynn, Director 
Tony King,  Recreation Supervisor 
Greg Hoyte, Youth Center Manager  
207 S. Forrest Street  Stoughton, WI 53589 
(608) 873-6746  www.stoughtonrec.com 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  
PARKS & RECREATION DEPARTMENT 







The City’s fee-in-lieu of land dedication standard is based on the City’s current inventory of 159.12 acres 
of parkland. This is comprised of 130.6 acres of active use parks and 28.4 acres of conservancy and 
natural areas.  


City staff inventoried items in parks classified as Mini Parks, Neighborhood Parks, and Community parks. 
These items had replacement costs valued by industry professionals such as landscape architects and 
playground salespeople. The sum of these improvements was found to total $17,675,636 and using the 
City’s current inventory of parkland, the estimated improvement cost per acre (active parkland) is 
$135,280.  


A trail improvement fee was considered due to the importance of trails highlighted in the 2018 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. City staff provided the linear foot of trails within the City that 
were not provided by developers and provided the replacement value for the trails. The replacement 
value for trails were provided by park professionals who had recently completed projects in Dane 
County. This amount totaled to $422,200. The estimated cost per foot of trail is $22.  


The land costs to calculate the fee-in-lieu of land dedication is based on the City-wide average cost of 
land acquisition as allowed for by state law. It was determined that the 2009 study likely included street 
infrastructure costs. Current interpretation of State law requires street infrastructure costs be 
considered part of the park improvement fees. Therefore, street infrastructure costs have been 
incorporated into the park improvement fees. The new proposed fee-in-lieu of dedication is $78,585 per 
acre.   


 


Findings  


Below is a comparison of the updated 2021 fee summary with the current City fees. The study defines 
Group Quarters as a dwelling unit where individuals live or stay that is owned or managed by an entity 
or organization providing housing and/or services for the residents (for example a skilled-nursing 
facility). The Fee in Lieu of Land Dedication cost went down due to the aforementioned street 
infrastructure costs being included in the 2009 study which are not included in the Park Facilities 
Improvement Fee.  


Study Findings 


Dwelling Unit 
Type 


Park Facilities 
Improvement 


Trails Fee in Lieu of 
Land Dedication 


Total 


Single Family $3,741 $89 $2,647 $6,477 
Multi Family $2,597 $62 $1,838 $4,497 
Group Quarters $1,346 $32 $952 $2,330 


 


Current Fees 


Dwelling Unit 
Type 


Park Facilities 
Improvement 


Trails Fee in Lieu of 
Land Dedication 


Total 


Single Family $1,243 NA $3,828 $5,066 







Two-Family (per 
unit) 


$1,243 NA $3,828 $5,066 


Multi-Family (2 
bedrooms or 
more) 


$932 NA $2,868 $3,800 


Multi-Family (1 
bedroom or less) 


$621 NA $1,911 $2,532 


 


The following tables compare the study findings for land dedication and the current land dedication 
requirement. The study used census data to determine household size of each dwelling type and used 
that data to determine the parkland needed to maintain 12.12 acres of parkland per 1,000 people (528 
square feet per person). Due to state law, impact fees cannot be used as a vehicle to increase the level 
of service provided by the City. If the City wishes to increase its level of service, then it must use other 
means such as purchasing property using general obligation funds.  


Study Findings 


Dwelling Unit 
Type 


Household Size Square Feet per 
Person 


Total Dedication 
Amount (Square 
Feet) 


Single Family 2.78 528 1,468  
Multi Family 1.93 528 1,019 
Group Quarters 1.00 528 528 


  


Current Dedication Requirement 


Dwelling Unit 
Type 


Total Dedication 
Amount (Square 
Feet) 


All 1,468  
  







CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 


 
PARK IMPACT FEE, FEE IN LIEU OF LAND DEDICATION AND 


PUBLIC FACILITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Baker Tilly US, LLP 
4807 Innovate Lane 


P.O. Box 7398 
Madison, WI 53707-7398 


608 249 6622 
800 362 7301 


 
 


Dated: March 8, 2021 







 
Table of Contents 
 


 
 


 Page No. 
 


Executive Summary 1 
 
Introduction 3 
 
Section A – Statutory Requirements 4 – 8 
 
Section B – Compliance with Wisconsin Impact Fee Requirements 9 – 10 
 
Section C – Fee Calculation 11 – 16 
 
Appendix A 17 - 18 
 
 
 







City of Stoughton 
Page 1 


 
 


 


Executive Summary 
 
 
The purpose of this project was to evaluate and update the City’s current park impact fee under 
Wisconsin Statute, Chapter 66, Section 66.0617 Impact Fees and its fee in lieu of land dedication 
under Wisconsin Statute, Chapter 236, and Section 236.45 Local Subdivisions Requirements. The 
park impact fee(s) as referenced throughout this report include both the trail and park development 
aspects of the park impact fee.  
 
According to the City of Stoughton’s (the “City”) 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, the 
City is expecting to have population growth slightly higher than Dane County as a whole through 
2030. This anticipated growth will require additions to the City’s parkland and park facilities (trails 
and park capital improvements). Impact fees will continue to assist in financing the capital costs 
associated with trails and park facility improvements. A fee in lieu of land dedication will continue to 
assist in financing the acquisition or initial improvement of land for public parks.  
 
The City currently charges a park impact fee and a fee in lieu of land dedication as established by 
the following reports and ordinances: 
 


Stoughton, WI Code of Ordinances, Sec. 67-5 – Parks, playgrounds and land for athletic 
fields impact fee. Ordinance No. 0-8-09, 6-23-2009 


Stoughton, WI Code of Ordinances, Section 66-1101 – Provision of public lands and open 
spaces. Ordinance No. 0-7-09, 6-23-2009 


Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study dated January 2009 (Ruekert & 
Mielke 2009) 


Per the City, they update the impact fee and fee in lieu of land dedication annually based on the 
Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index per Sec 66-1101.(2). 
  
This document serves as a summary of Baker Tilly’s analysis of the City’s existing park impact fee 
and its fee in lieu of land dedication. It also serves to satisfy the statutory obligations as outlined in 
Wisconsin Statute 66.0617 and Wisconsin Statute 236.45 to update its existing fees and public 
facility needs assessment. The primary resources used in this development of this study include:  
 


 The City of Stoughton 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation (the Plan) as prepared by 
Ayres Associates adopted on December 11, 2018. See the acknowledgements section of the 
Plan for those that were involved in its creation. The Plan is located on the City’s website.  


 The park inventory listing as provided by the City. This document was compiled by the City 
from the City insurance listing, replacement values, internal capital asset listing, observation 
and engineering assistance. Refer to Appendix A. 
 


 The trail inventory listing as provided by the City. This document was compiled by the City. 
Refer to Appendix A. 


 
 The land cost as provide by the City. The land cost is based on the City-wide average cost of 


unimproved land acquisition based on recent land sales and the cost to improve the land for 
public parks. Per s. 236.45(6)(ac), “improvement for public parks” means grading, 
landscaping, installation of utilities, construction of sidewalks, installation of playground 
equipment, and construction or installation of restroom facilities on land intended for public 
park purposes.”   


 







City of Stoughton 
Page 2 


 
 


 


Executive Summary (cont.) 
 
 
This study should be read in conjunction with these resources. We provide no assurance on the 
accuracy of the resources used to develop this study. 
 
The City may implement or update other impact fees at a later date; however, no consideration has 
been given to those possibilities in this report. 







City of Stoughton 
Page 3 


 
 


 


Introduction  
 
 
As previously stated in the Executive Summary, the City expects to experience population growth 
through 2030. Planning responsibly for new growth within a community is one of many challenges 
facing local governments. Effective accommodation of this development requires the construction 
and upgrade of public facilities and infrastructure to serve new residents. As well as additional park 
land to accommodate growth.  
 
It is common that during the construction and upgrade of public infrastructure, many residents and 
businesses that will occupy the newly developed areas of the community may not yet be present. 
The purchase of land and the development of land often precedes the inhabiting of the property. 
While this may be an obvious fact, it holds important consequence for the public financing of new 
development. In order to apportion the public costs of new development fairly and responsibly, some 
measure must be undertaken to ensure that the entire cost of accommodating new development is 
not born solely by the current residents of the municipality. One such measure to accomplish this 
goal is the use of impact fees and a fee-in-lieu of land dedication to offset the initial cost to local 
taxpayers of satisfying the additional demand on the public infrastructure and park land. 







City of Stoughton 
Page 4 


 
 


 


Section A – Statutory Requirements 
 
 
Wisconsin’s Impact Fee Statute 66.0617 prescribes the types of public infrastructure for which an 
impact fee may be charged, the costs that may be included in developing an impact fee, as well as 
the obligations on the part of the issuing municipality prior to and subsequent to the fee being 
charged. These obligations are detailed below. 
 
In addition, if a municipality charges a fee in lieu of land dedication in accordance with Wisconsin 
State Statute 236.45(6) (am), the municipality must follow the procedures under s. 66.0617 (3) to (5) 
and meet the requirements under s. 66.0617 (6) to (10). This is detailed below. 
 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617(1) Definitions: 
 
The following definitions as outlined in Wisconsin State Statute 66.0617(1) have been addressed in 
the fee computation. The requirements are as follows: 
 


 Per Subsection(1)(a), “Capital costs” means the capital costs to construct, expand or improve 
public facilities, including the cost of land, and including legal, engineering and design costs to 
construct, expand or improve public facilities, except that not more than 10% of capital costs may 
consist of legal, engineering and design costs unless the municipality can demonstrate that its 
legal, engineering and design costs which relate directly to the public improvement for which the 
impact fees were imposed exceed 10% of capital costs. “Capital costs” does not include other 
noncapital costs to construct, expand or improve public facilities, vehicles; or the costs of 
equipment to construct, expand or improve public facilities. 


Based on the definition above, only allowable capital costs are included in the impact fee 
computation.  


The City’s standard related to its fee-in-lieu of land dedication costs is outlined below. See Chapter 
236 requirements.  
 


 Per Subsection (1)(f)(1), “Public Facilities” means…parks, playgrounds, and land for athletic 
fields…….”. 


The projects included in the impact fee computation meet this definition. 


 Per Subsection (1)(g), “Service area” means geographical area delineated by a municipality within 
which there are public facilities. 


The service area for the impact fee and the fee-in-lieu of land dedication is the City of Stoughton. 
The park types, acreage standards and service area radius are detailed in the City of Stoughton’s 
2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan. This document is located on the City’s website. 


 Per Subsection (1)(h), “Service standard” means a certain quantity or quality of public facilities 
relative to a certain number of persons, parcels of land or other appropriate measure, as specified 
by the municipality.  
 
The park types, acreage standards and service area radius are detailed in the City of Stoughton’s 
2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan.  
 
The impact fee cost standard per acre is based on the replacement value of improvements 
provided to the City’s insurer and supported by the City’s capital asset records as well as 
observation. See Appendix A.  
 
 
 







City of Stoughton 
Page 5 


 
 


 


 
Section A – Statutory Requirements (cont.) 
 


 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617(1) Definitions (cont.): 
 


The City trail standard is outlined in Appendix A. 
 
The standards and service areas used for consideration in the impact fee calculation is for “active-
use” parks. The impact fee calculation does not include conservancy park areas and drainageways. 
Although these areas may be used for recreational purposes, they are not suitable for long-term 
“active use” recreational facility improvements. The City currently provides 9.95 acres of active-use 
acres of parkland per 1,000 residents for its impact fee calculation. 
 
The City’s standard related to its fee-in-lieu of land dedication is outlined below. See Chapter 236 
requirements.  


 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617(6) – Standards for Impact Fees: 
 
This report adheres to what an impact fee should reflect according to Wisconsin State Statute 
66.0617(6). The standard requirements are as follows: 
 


 Per Section (6)(a), shall bear a rational relationship to the need for new, expanded or improved 
public facilities that are required to serve land development. 


The fees found herein are for public facilities and land that are required to serve future 
developed land and the service demands that development creates. 


 Per Section (6)(am), may not include amounts for an increase in service capacity greater than the 
capacity necessary to serve the development for which the fee is imposed.  


The fees were developed to address the capacity necessary to service the development for which 
the fees are being imposed. 


 Per Section (6)(b), may not exceed the proportionate share of the capital costs that are required to 
serve land development, as compared to existing uses of land within the municipality. 


The capital costs, which form the basis for the fees developed as a part of this study, include 
actual as well as estimated replacement costs for land costs, park improvements and trail 
improvements. These costs were based on what was known at the time the study as 
assembled by City staff. These standards were then used to calculate a cost to be charged.  


 Per Section (6)(c), shall be based upon actual capital costs or reasonable estimates of capital costs 
for new, expanded or improved public facilities. 


The capital costs, which form the basis for the fee developed as a part of this study, include 
actual as well as estimated replacement costs for land costs, park improvements and trail 
improvements. These costs were based on what was known at the time of the study as 
assembled by City staff. These standards were then used to calculate a cost to be charged.  


 Per Section (6)(d), shall be reduced to compensate for other capital costs imposed by the 
municipality with respect to land development to provide or pay for public facilities, including special 
assessments, special charges, land dedications or fees in lieu of land dedications under Chapter 
236 or any other items of value. 


The other financing sources listed above were taken into consideration as a part of the fee 
computations. It has been determined that these financing sources have not been used to 
finance capital costs for park improvements. Therefore, these sources were not included in the 
fee calculations.  







City of Stoughton 
Page 6 


 
 


 


Section A – Statutory Requirements (cont.) 
 
 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617(6) – Standards for Impact Fees (cont.): 
 


 Per Section (6)(e), shall be reduced to compensate for moneys received from the federal or state 
government specifically to provide or pay for the public facilities for which the impact fees are 
imposed. 
 
The receipt of federal and or state grants was considered in the fee development. No grant 
funds have been received from federal or state governments specifically for park improvements 
or land purchases in the last ten years. City staff determined that state and federal grant funds 
cannot be relied upon to fund future park projects. Therefore, the fee has not been reduced for 
such funds. The City will continue to attempt to secure park grant funding. Any grant funds 
received in the future will be factored in future impact fee calculations.  
 


 Per Section (6)(f), may not include amounts necessary to address existing deficiencies in public 
facilities. 
 
The costs included in the fee computations are not related to curing existing deficiencies. 
 


 Per Section (6)(fm), may not include expenses for operation or maintenance of a public facility. 
 
The costs included in the fee computations do not include expenses for operation or maintenance 
of a public facility.  
 


 Section (6)(g) except as provided under this paragraph, shall be payable by the developer or the 
property owner to the municipality in full upon issuance of a building permit by the municipality. 
There are exceptions to this outlined in the statute.  
 
All fees will be due at the time of building permit issuance except for situations allowed for 
under this section of the impact fee statute.  


 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617 (7r) – Impact Fee Reports 
 


 At the time that the municipality collects an impact fee, it shall provide to the developer for which it 
received the fee an accounting of how the fee will be spent.  
 
The City is aware of this requirement.  


 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617 (8) – Requirements for Impact Fee Revenues 
 


  Revenues from each impact fee that is imposed shall be placed in a separate segregated 
interest−bearing account and shall be accounted for separately from the other funds of the 
municipality. Impact fee revenues and interest earned on impact fee revenues may be expended 
only for the particular capital costs for which the impact fee was imposed, unless the fee is 
refunded under sub. (9). 
 
The City accounts for its fees in a separate general ledger account. Interest income is allocated 
to this account on a monthly basis.  
 







City of Stoughton 
Page 7 


 
 


 


Section A – Statutory Requirements (cont.) 
 
 
Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617 (9) – Refund of Impact Fees 
 


 Except as provided in this subsection, impact fees that are not used within 8 years after they are 
collected to pay capital costs for which they were imposed shall be refunded to the payer of fees for 
the property with respect to which the impact fees were imposed, along with any interest that has 
accumulated, as described in sub. (8). Impact fees that are collected for capital costs related to lift 
stations or collecting and treating sewage that are not used within 10 years after they are collected 
to pay the capital costs for which they were imposed, shall be refunded to the payer of the fees for 
the property with respect to which the impact fees were imposed, along with any interest that has 
accumulated, as described in sub.(8). The 10-year time limit for using impact fees that is specified 
under this subsection may be extended for 3 years if the municipality adopts a resolution stating 
that, due to extenuating circumstances or hardship in meeting the 10 year limit, it needs an 
additional 3 years to use the impact fees that were collected.  


The resolution shall include detailed written findings that specify the extenuating circumstances or 
hardship that led to the need to adopt a resolution under this sub-section. For purposes of the time 
limits in this subsection, an impact fee is paid on the date the developer obtains a bond or 
irrevocable letter of credit in the amount of the unpaid fees executed in the name of the municipality 
under sub. (6) (g).  


According to City management, the City has spent down its impact fee collections in 
accordance with state statute guidance and no refunds have been made to date.  


 
NOTE: The impact fee requirements outlined in this section are subject to change by the legislature at 
any time. Refer to the state statute for the statutory requirements.  
 
Wisconsin State Statute Chapter 236 - Platting Lands and Recording and Vacating Plats 
 
A fee-in-lieu of land dedication must follow the requirements of Wisconsin State Statute Chapter 236 
– Platting Lands and Recording and Vacating Plats. See the requirements below.  
 
In addition, if a municipality charges a fee-in-lieu of land dedication in accordance with Wisconsin 
State Statute 236.45(6) (am), the municipality must follow the procedures under s. 66.0617 (3) to (5) 
and meet the requirements under s. 66.0617 (6) to (10). These are detailed above. 
 
Wisconsin State Statute Chapter 236 (6) – Requirements for Approval Conditions 
 


 Per Subsection(6)(ac), “Improvement of land for public parks” means grading, landscaping, 
installation of utilities, construction of sidewalks, installation of playground equipment, and 
construction or installation of restroom facilities on land intended for public park purposes.  


Based on the definition above, only allowable costs are included in the fee-in-lieu of land 
dedication. See Appendix A. 


 Per Subsection (6)(b), any land dedication, easement, or other public improvement or fee for the 
acquisition or initial improvement of land for a public park that is required by a municipality, town, or 
county as a condition of approval under this chapter mush bear a rational relationship to a need for 
the land dedication, easement, or other public improvement, parkland acquisition or initial 
improvement fee resulting from the subdivision or other division of land and must be proportional to 
the need. 


The City is meeting this requirement. The City is providing a service level of 12.2 acres per 1,000 
residents. See assumptions.  


 







City of Stoughton 
Page 8 


 
 


 


Section A – Statutory Requirements (cont.) 
 
 
Wisconsin State Statute Chapter 236 (6) – Requirements for Approval Conditions 
 


 If a subdivision ordinance of a municipality, town, or county requires, as a condition of approval 
under this chapter, that a subdivider dedicate land for public park, the municipality, town or county 
may offer the the subdivider the option of either dedicating land consistent with the municipality’s, 
town’s or county’s park plan and comprehensive plan or paying a fee or other charge under par. 
(am) in lieu of the dedication. If the subdivider elects to pay a fee or other change under the 
paragraph, the fee or other charge is payable by the landowner to the municipality, town, or county 
upon issuance of a building permit by the municipality, town, or country. If the subdivers elects to 
dedicate land under this paragraph, unless the municipality, town, or county agrees otherwise, the 
subdivider only may dedicate land that is consistent with the municipality’s, town’s or county’s park 
plan and comprehensive plan.  


See Section C for the fee-in-lieu of land dedication fee calculation. If land dedication is selected, the 
City’s land dedication standard is 1,468 square feet per dwelling unit.  See the assumptions in 
Section C. 


A fee-in-lieu of land dedication is due upon issuance of a building permit. 


NOTE: The fee-in-lieu of land dedication requirements outlined in this section are subject to change by 
the legislature at any time. Refer to the state statute for the statutory requirements.  


 







City of Stoughton 
Page 9 


 
 


 


Section B – Compliance with Wisconsin Impact Fee Requirements  
 


 
Impact Fee Process 
 
See Wisconsin State Statute 66.0617 for the detailed process. In addition, if a municipality charges a 
fee in lieu of land dedication in accordance with Wisconsin State Statute 236.45(6), the municipality 
must follow the procedures under s. 66.0617 (3) to (5) and meet the requirements under s. 66.0617 
(6) to (10).  
 
The process followed and information utilized in the development of the impact fees / fee in lieu of 
land dedication is summarized below: 
  
 Requires a Public Hearing (s. 66.0617 (3)):  


Class 1 notice under Chapter 985  


Provide copy of proposed ordinances  


Provide public facilities needs assessment  


 Based on a Public Facilities Needs Assessment (for facilities included
in the impact fee calculation) (s. 66.0617 (4)): 


 


Inventory of existing facilities, including deficiencies  


Identification of new public facilities  


Estimated (or actual) capital cost of new public facilities  


Effect of recovering capital costs on affordable housing  


Available for public inspection and copying in the office of the clerk
at least 20 days before hearing 


 


 Follow Impact Fee Standards:  


Rational relationship to the need for new facilities  


Proportionality  


Actual costs or reasonable estimates  


Net of other charges  


Net of grants  


Must exclude improvements to address deficiencies 


May not include expenses for operation or maintenance of a public
facility 


 


Payable by the developer or property owner to the City in full upon
the issuance of a building permit by the City 


 


 Establish Accounting Requirements:  


Use of funds restricted  


Subject to refund  


 Specify Appeal Procedure (s. 66.0617 (10))  


 







City of Stoughton 
Page 10 


 
 


 


Section B – Compliance with Wisconsin Impact Fee Requirements (cont.)  
 


 
Imposition of the Park Impact Fee / Fee-in-lieu of Land Dedication 
 
The park impact fee and fee-in-lieu of land dedication will be due at the time of building permit 
issuance except for situations allowed for under this section of the impact fee statute.  
 


Wisconsin State Statute Section 66.0617(7) - Low Cost Housing 


In general, the level of the fees in relation to average housing cost should not impede the affordability 
of low-cost housing. For example, including the proposed single family park impact fee and fee in lieu 
of land dedication of $6,477, in a typical 30 year mortgage at 4% interest would equate to an 
additional monthly payment of $31.  According to AreaVibes Inc., the median home price in 
Stoughton is $182,400. Assuming a down payment of 20%, the average monthly mortgage payment 
would be $697. The impact fee would be 4.4% of the monthly payment. In addition, if the owner of a 
multifamily dwelling were to include the proposed multi-family fees of $4,497 in a mortgage with the 
same terms, the additional monthly payment would be $21.  
 
The impact fee statute allows for an exemption from or reduced fees on new development that is 
approved for affordable housing. If a portion of the project has been approved for affordable housing, 
then the fee may be adjusted accordingly at the discretion of the City Council upon recommendation 
of the Planning Commission. 
 
Information from the 2013-2017 US Census showed that the City of Stoughton’s median household 
income was $63,333 (2017 dollars). Dane County's median household income was $67,631 (2017) 
dollars). Wisconsin’s household income was $56,759 (2017 dollars). 
 
Updates to the Report 
 
The park impact fees should be evaluated for adjustment on a periodic basis based on a Construction 
Cost Index. The fee-in-lieu of land dedication should also be evaluated for adjustment on a periodic 
basis to account for increases / decreases in land costs. This will allow for changes in growth, project 
costs, estimates or other projects to be incorporated into the fees. See assumptions for 
recommendations.  







City of Stoughton 
Page 11 


 
 


 


Section C – Fee Calculation 
 


 
Assumptions  
 


 The existing park impact fees were based on Stoughton, WI Code of Ordinances, Section. 67-
5, Ordinance No. 0-8-09, Public Facilities Needs Assessment for Park Improvements (Ruekert 
& Mielke 2009). The fee has been updated annually based on the Engineering News Record 
Construction Cost Index per Sec 66-1101.(2). 


 The fee in lieu of parkland dedication was last updated in 2009. See Stoughton, WI Code of 
Ordinances, Section 66-1101, Ordinance No. 0-7-09.  


 The City’s current 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (Plan) was used as the basis 
for this study. This Plan was approved on December 11, 2018. As noted in the Plan, “Parks are 
gateways to healthy, prosperous and connected communities.” The plan also supports the 
guidelines established in the City of Stoughton 2017 Comprehensive Plan which can be found 
on the City website. 


https://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/index.asp?SEC=1E694A0C-A5D8-41FF-92C5-9598AA47B3AB 


 According to the US Census, 2013-2017, the most recent population estimate for the City is 
13,060 as of July 1, 2018, which is an increase of approximately 400 since 2010 (12,611 
population) or a 3.5% increase. According to the US Census 2013-2017 survey results, it is 
expected that the City’s population will grow to 13,800 by the year 2030 or an increase of 
approximately 740 or 5.7%. The City’s population in 2019 and 2020 was 12,911 and 13,130, 
respectively. 


 According to the United States Census Bureau (2010 results – latest known), the City has total 
land area in square miles of 4.92 which equates to a population density of 2,563 inhabitants per 
square mile when using the 2013-2017 ACS estimates and 2,624 inhabitants per square mile 
when using the 2019 population and 2,668 when using the 2020 population.  


 According to the City’s parkland inventory records, the City has approximately 130.66 improved 
acres of active parkland for existing residents. This was used to compute the impact fee. 


 The City’s fee-in-lieu of land dedication standard is based on 159.12 acres of parkland. This is 
comprised of 130.66 acres of active use parks and 28.46 of conservancy parks and natural 
areas.  


 According to the City, the City has park improvements in the amount of $17,675,636. This 
includes all City parks that only have City improvements i.e. no developer added 
improvements. The estimated improvement cost per acre is $135,280 (see Appendix A, Table 
I.) 


 According to the City, the City has also used its resources to finance trails in the amount of 
$422,200. The estimated cost per foot of trail is $22 (see Appendix A, Table III.)   


 The land costs to calculate the fee-in-lieu of land dedication is based on the City-wide average 
cost of land acquisition and “improvements of land for public park costs” as allowed for under 
Chapter 236. The cost per acre is $78,585 (see Appendix A, Table IV). 


 Park development fees will not be assessed to nonresidential land uses as park usage is 
primarily residential in this community. 


 The Park & Open Space standards can be found in the City of Stoughton 2018 Comprehensive 
Outdoor Recreation Plan. 







City of Stoughton 
Page 12 


 
 


 


Section C – Fee Calculation (cont.) 
 


 
Assumptions (cont.) 
 


 For purposes of this analysis, it is assumed that there will be an average of 2.78 persons per 
household for single-family housing units and 1.93 persons per household for duplex and 
multifamily housing units. See Section C (pages 14 – 16) for the computation and source 
information. 


 For purposes of this report, “Group Quarters Dwelling Unit” is defined as follows: a dwelling unit 
where individuals live or stay that is owned or managed by an entity or organization providing 
housing and / or services for the residents. The services may include, but are not limited to, 
custodial or medical care and other types of assistance (for example a skilled-nursing facility). 
Residency is restricted to the individuals receiving the services, and the individuals typically do 
not participate in the labor force while a resident. Typically, a Group Quarters Dwelling Unit has 
one resident per unit.  


 It is assumed that City of Stoughton parks, particularly the athletic facilities, will be used by 
other nearby communities. However, it is further assumed that such use will be reciprocal in 
that Stoughton residents will use facilities in other jurisdictions in roughly equal measure. 
Nonresident use is not considered to have a measurable influence on the level of improvement 
or the allocation of capital improvement costs as the City does not include non-residents in its 
park standard. 


 The City has one impact fee zone which is comprised of the entire City of Stoughton (s 
66.0617(5). 


 The impact fee standard and service area used for consideration in this study are for “active-
use” parks. It does not include conservancy park areas and drainage-ways. Although these 
areas may be used for recreational purposes, they are not suitable for long-term “active use” 
recreational facility improvements. The City is currently providing 9.95 acres of active-use acres 
of parkland per 1,000 residents using the 2020 population of 13,130. The calculation is (130.66 
/ 13,130)*1,000 = 9.95. 


 The fee-in-lieu of land dedication standard used for consideration in this study is comprised of 
“active-parks” of 130.66 and “passive use” parks of 28.46 for a total of 159.12 acres. While the 
type of land dedicated by developers is typically used for the development of active use parks, 
such use is not required. The city is currently providing 12.12 acres of parkland per 1,000 
residents using the 2020 population of 13,130. The calculation is (159.12 / 13,130)*1,000 = 
12.12. 


 The City’s land dedication requirement is 1,468 square feet per dwelling unit. This is computed 
as follows: (12.12 acres * 43,560 square feet in an acre) / 1,000 = 527.95 square foot per 
person. 527.95 square foot per person * 2.78 (household size – see Appendix A) = 1,468 
square feet per dwelling unit.  


 
Recommendation 
 
The City should consider whether its existing park impact fee and fee in lieu of land dedication fee 
should be updated with the fees identified and explained on the following pages. The Group 
Quarters dwelling unit type has been broken out from the multi-family dwelling unit type. 
 







City of Stoughton 
Page 13 


 
 


 


Section C – Fee Calculation (cont.) 
 


 
 
Fee Summary  
 


Dwelling  
Unit 
Type 


Park 
Facilities 


Improvement Trails 


Fee in Lieu  
of Land 


Dedication Total 


Single Family $ 3,741 $ 89 $ 2,647 $ 6,477 


Multi Family 2,597 62 1,838 4,497 


Group Quarters 1,346 32 952 2,330 
  


 







City of Stoughton
Page 14


Park Facilities Improvement Impact Fee Calculation


1 2
Dwelling (A)
Unit Persons Cost per 3 (1*2)
Type per Household Person Fee


Single Family 2.78                  1,346.03$         3,741.98$             


Multi Family 1.93                  1,346.03$         2,597.85$             


Group Quarters 1.00                  1,346.03$         1,346.03$             


Standards:
Cost standard per acre 135,280$              B


Parkland acres per 1,000 residents 9.95                      C


Cost per Person:


Cost standard per acre 135,280$              B
Multiplied by: acres per person 0.0099500            per above


Cost per person 1,346.03$             


A) Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.
B) Per the City of Stoughton - Appendix A. Table I.
C) Per the City of Stoughton


Section C - Fee Calculation (cont.)







City of Stoughton
Page 15


Trail Impact Fee Calculation


1 2
Dwelling (A)
Unit Persons Cost per 3 (1*2)
Type per Household Person Fee


Single Family 2.78                  32.15$              89.40$                  


Multi Family 1.93                  32.15$              62.07$                  


Group Quarters 1.00                  32.15$              32.15$                  


Standards:
Cost standard per foot 22.42$                  B


Current Statistics:
Estimated 2020 City population 13,130                  C


Footage per person
Total footage 18,830                  D
Divided by: current residents 13,130                  C


Foot per person 1.4341203            


Cost per Person:


Cost standard per foot 22$                       B
Multiplied by: footage per person 1.4341203            per above


Cost per person 32.15$                  


A) Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.
B) Per the City of Stoughton - Appendix A. Table III.
C) Source: City of Stoughton
D) Per the City of Stoughton - Appendix A. Table III.


Section C - Fee Calculation (cont.)







City of Stoughton
Page 16


Fee in lieu of land dedication


1 2
Dwelling (A)
Unit Persons Cost per 3 (1*2)
Type per Household Person Fee


Single Family 2.78                  952.45$            2,647.82$             


Multi Family 1.93                  952.45$            1,838.24$             


Group Quarters 1.00                  952.45$            952.45$                


Standards:
Cost standard per acre 78,585$                B


Parkland acres per 1,000 residents 12.12                    C


Cost per Person:


Cost standard per acre 78,585$                B
Multiplied by: acres per person 0.0121200            per above


Cost per person 952.45$                


A) Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2013-2017 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates.
B) Per the City of Stoughton - Appendix A. Table IV.
C) Per the City of Stoughton


Section C - Fee Calculation (cont.)







 


 


APPENDIX A 
 
 







Appendix A Page 17
Table I. Inventory of Park Capital Improvements 


2020
Value of City


Neighborhood Parks Acres Improvements


Bjoin Park 7.23                        931,840$            
Dunkirk Avenue Park 1.31                        214,765              
East Side Park 1.95                        1,057,735           
Lowell Street Park 14.96                      1,101,620           
Nordic Ridge Park 6.62                        921,560              
Norse Park 8.00                        1,434,915           
Schefelker Park 10.41                      191,933              
Veteran's Memorial Park 3.93                        629,265              
Virgin Lake Park 6.96                        576,850              
Westview Ridge Park 5.06                        672,543              


Subtotal 66.43                      7,733,026           


Mini Parks


Criddle Park 0.22                        120,150              
Division Street Park 0.76                        691,320              
Riverside Park 1.36                        356,805              


Roby/Page Park 0.13                        103,090              


Subtotal 2.47                        1,271,365           


Community Parks


Mandt Park 33.20                      5,352,435           
Racetrack Park 28.56                      3,318,810           


Subtotal 61.76                      8,671,245           


Park improvement subtotal 130.66                    17,675,636         


AVERAGE COST PER ACRE TO IMPROVE 135,280$            


Source: City of Stoughton







Appendix A Page 18
Table II. Park Inventory


Total Cost Less 10% Internal Improvement
Park Per Insurance Non Insurance Developer Engineering Road Bisecting Cost


Park Type Acres Printout Items Total Funded Net Planning Frontage Roads Total Per Acre


Included In Park Improvement Calculation 


Mandt Park Community 33.20            2,949,850$       56,000$         3,005,850$    -$                   3,005,850$    300,585$       906,750$       1,139,250$    5,352,435$       161,218$          
Racetrack Park Community 28.56            2,298,950         20,650           2,319,600      -                     2,319,600      231,960         767,250         -                     3,318,810         116,205            


Subtotal 61.76            5,248,800         76,650           5,325,450      -                     5,325,450      532,545         1,674,000      1,139,250      8,671,245         


Bjoin Park Neighborhood 7.23              305,000            26,400           331,400         -                     331,400         33,140           567,300         -                     931,840            128,885            
Dunkirk Avenue Park Neighborhood 1.31        90,000        5,900             95,900           -                     95,900           9,590             109,275         -                     214,765            163,943            
East Side Park Neighborhood 1.95        520,000      18,850           538,850         -                     538,850         53,885           465,000         -                     1,057,735         542,428            
Lowell Street Park Neighborhood 14.96            215,000            23,450           238,450         -                     238,450         23,845           532,425         306,900         1,101,620         73,638              
Nordic Ridge Park Neighborhood 6.62        569,000      23,600           592,600         -                     592,600         59,260           269,700         -                     921,560            139,208            
Norse Park Neighborhood 8.00        895,000      50,150           945,150         -                     945,150         94,515           395,250         -                     1,434,915         179,364            
Schefelker Park Neighborhood 10.41      81,875        5,950             87,825           -                     87,825           8,783             95,325           -                     191,933            18,437              
Veteran's Memorial Park Neighborhood 3.93        157,500      2,400             159,900         -                     159,900         15,990           453,375         -                     629,265            160,118            
Virgin Lake Park Neighborhood 6.96        315,000      6,500             321,500         -                     321,500         32,150           223,200         -                     576,850            82,881              
Westview Ridge Park Neighborhood 5.06        170,000      18,675           188,675         -                     188,675         18,868           465,000         -                     672,543            132,914            


Subtotal 66.43            3,318,375         181,875         3,500,250      -                     3,500,250      350,026         3,575,850      306,900         7,733,026         


Criddle Park Mini Park 0.22              77,500              4,250             81,750           -                     81,750           8,175             30,225           -                     120,150            546,136            
Division Street Park Mini Park 0.76              -                        4,950             4,950             -                     4,950             495                606,825         79,050           691,320            909,632            
Riverside Park Mini Park 1.36              -                        11,550           11,550           -                     11,550           1,155             344,100         -                     356,805            262,357            
Roby/Page Park Mini Park 0.13        35,000        1,650       36,650     -               36,650     3,665       62,775     -               103,090            793,000      


Subtotal 2.47              112,500            22,400           134,900         -                     134,900         13,490           1,043,925      79,050           1,271,365         


Total Park Improvements 130.66          8,679,675$       280,925$       8,960,600$    -$                   8,960,600$    896,061$       17,675,636$     135,280$          


Note 1: Table II. includes all City parks that have been improved by the City
Note 2: Cost per LF of road frontage $465, cost per LF of internal / bisecting roads $930


Table III. Trail Inventory


Total feet of City Trails 18,830               


Total miles of City Trails 3.57                   


Replacement Value 422,200$           


Replacement cost per foot 22.42$               


Table IV. Fee in lieu of land dedication


Cost per acre - per City land sales 60,000$             
Grading / utilities 18,585               


Total Cost 78,585$             





		07a O-23-2021-Ordinance re park impact fees and fees in lieu of land dedication (May 26, 2021)

		07b Packet Info

		Impact Fee Presentation

		Park Impact Fee, Fee in lieu of land dedication, and public facilities needs assessment 

		Why

		Statutory Limitations 

		Study Methodology – Supporting Documents 

		Study Methodology – Parkland 

		Study Methodology – Parkland 

		Study Methodology – Fee in Lieu of

		Study Methodology – Park Facilities Improvement Fee

		Study Methodology – Park Facilities Improvement Fee

		Study Methodology – Trail Improvement Fee

		Summary 

		Questions?



		Report with memo

		Impact Fee Memo Updated 10-28-2021

		FINAL - StoughtonParkImpactFees - 3.08.2021










1  


AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES 


JANUARY 1, 2022 - DECEMBER 31, 2025 


 


It is hereby agreed by and between the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, hereinafter 


referred to as the "City," and the law firm of Stafford Rosenbaum LLP, hereinafter referred 


to as "City Attorney," as follows: 
 


1. Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence January 1, 2022 


and shall terminate December 31, 2025, subject, however, to the termination 


provisions of paragraph 5. 


2. Duties and Responsibilities. The City hereby retains the City Attorney to provide 


such municipal legal services as shall, from time to time, be requested in 


accordance with the City's CITY ATTORNEY CONTACT POLICY attached as 


Attachment A. The City Attorney may assume that requests for legal services that 


are made by or authorized by the Mayor, City Council, City Clerk, Police Chief,  


Parks Director, Finance Director, Utilities Director or Planning Director are in 


accordance with the City's Attorney Contact Policy. 


3. Compensation.  The City shall pay for legal services on an hourly basis as follows: 


A. January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2023.  


Type of Services Description of Services Hourly Rates 
    


General 


Municipal  


Law Services 


Advising on issues of municipal law; attending 


meetings as directed; drafting municipal ordinances, 


resolutions, public construction contracts and other 


instruments as may be required; and performing such 


other duties as may be prescribed by law or requested. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 


 


$220 


$190 


$135 


    


Prosecutorial 


Services 


Advising on matters relating to the issuance of citations 


and prosecution of ordinance violations; prosecuting 


ordinance violations. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 


$200 


$175 


$135 


    


Land Use and 


Development  


Related Services 


Advising and representing in the review, processing and 


action on land use and development-related matters, 


including annexation, zoning, land division, tax 


increment financing and urban service area 


amendments; negotiating and drafting permits, 


agreements and other documents relating to land use 


and development issues. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 


 


$280 


$220 


$145 


    


Additional Services, 


including: Litigation, 


Environmental and 


Labor and 


Employment Services 


Rates charged for a particular matter will be determined 
on a case-by-case basis. 


  


 


 







2  


B. January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2025. 
 


Type of Services Description of Services Hourly Rates 
    


General 


Municipal  


Law Services 


Advising on issues of municipal law; attending 


meetings as directed; drafting municipal ordinances, 


resolutions, public construction contracts and other 


instruments as may be required; and performing such 


other duties as may be prescribed by law or requested. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 


 


$225 


$195 


$140 


    


Prosecutorial 


Services 


Advising on matters relating to the issuance of citations 


and prosecution of ordinance violations; prosecuting 


ordinance violations. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 


$205 


$180 


$135 


    


Land Use and 


Development  


Related Services 


Advising and representing in the review, processing and 


action on land use and development-related matters, 


including annexation, zoning, land division, tax 


increment financing and urban service area 


amendments; negotiating and drafting permits, 


agreements and other documents relating to land use 


and development issues. 


Partners 


Associates 


Paralegals 


 


$285 


$225 


$150 


    


Additional Services, 


including: Litigation, 


Environmental and 


Labor and 


Employment Services 


Rates charged for a particular matter will be determined 
on a case-by-case basis. 


  


 


C. The City shall reimburse the City Attorney for time spent traveling on City 


related business at the hourly rates set forth in Sections A and B above. 


D. The City shall reimburse the City Attorney for all expenses the City Attorney 


incurs in connection with services provided to the City. 


E. The City Attorney shall provide to the City Finance Director an itemized 


statement each month that shows the total time worked and the nature of the work 


performed and the amount due the City Attorney.  The City shall pay any amounts 


due within 30 days of receipt of such an itemized statement. 


4. Conflict of Interest.  The City Attorney will notify the City of any real or potential 


conflict of interest regarding the City Attorney's representation of the City.  The City 


Attorney may decline or withdraw from representation of the City in a matter as a result 


of any real or potential conflict of interest. 


5. Termination. Either party, upon written notice to the other, may terminate this 


Agreement without cause upon the expiration of 90 days from the delivery of such 


written notice to the other party. In the event the City Attorney is unable to represent the 


City in any matter as a result of a conflict of interest, the City may terminate this 


Agreement immediately upon delivery of written notice of termination to the City 


Attorney.  In the event of termination, the City Attorney will be compensated for 


services rendered and expenses incurred prior to such termination in accordance with 







3  


the terms set forth above. 


6. Return of City Records. The City Attorney shall return to the City all City Records 


and files upon termination or expiration of this Agreement. 


7. Non-Assignment. The City Attorney's rights and obligations under this Agreement 


are not assignable without the City's prior written consent. 


8. Modification of Agreement. No modification of this Agreement will be valid unless 


it is in writing and is duly executed by both parties. The parties further agree that 


the provisions of this paragraph may not be waived, except as specifically herein set 


forth. 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
 


Date ____________________  _______________________________________ 


      Mayor Tim Swadley  


 


Date ____________________  _______________________________________ 


      Candee Christen, City Clerk  


 


 


 


 


      STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP  


 


Date ____________________  _______________________________________ 


      Matthew P. Dregne, Partner 


 


Attachment:  City Attorney Contact Policy 







 


ATTACHMENT "A" 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
CITY ATTORNEY CONTACT POLICY 


There are times when the City, City officials and City staff need legal advice or legal .services 


from the City Attorney.  Because legal services are costly, because the City may already have 


legal opinions available, and because requests for legal services should be coordinated to avoid 


unnecessary expense, the City adopts this CITY ATTORNEY CONTACT POLICY.   


 


1. Any person seeking legal services from the City Attorney should first determine 


whether the City already has a legal opinion on file that addresses the question, the 


City Clerk will update the list of attorney opinions on a biannual basis and place them 


on a website with a hard copy available in the Clerk's .office at City Hall. ·Changes 


in the law or different circumstances may make it advisable to obtain legal advice 


even where the City has an existing opinion;  
 


2. The City Council, Mayor, City Clerk, Police Chief, Planning Director, Utilities 


Director, Parks Director and Finance Director are each authorized to request legal 


services from the City Attorney, on the City's behalf, as they deem necessary.  


 


3. Any elected City official is authorized to directly request legal advice from the City 


Attorney on matters related to his or her individual compliance with the open 


meetings law, ethics laws, mid open records law.  Any elected City official or 


appointed member of any City committee or commission is authorized to request an 


advisory ethics opinion from the City Attorney pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.59(5)(a).  


 


4. Individual alderpersons, department heads and others who wish to request legal 


services may make such request through the City Council. Mayor or City Clerk. 


Except as provided in Sections 3 and 4, individual alderpersons, department heads and 


others who wish to request legal services directly from the City Attorney shall do so.as 


follows: 


a. The person requesting legal services shall inform the Mayor or City Clerk that 


he or she will be contacting the City Attorney. 


The person requesting legal services shall ask the City Attorney for estimate of 


the amount of time required to provide the legal services. If the estimated time 


is more than 1 hour, the City Council, Mayor or City Clerk must approve the 


request for legal services. · 


 


5. Legal services requests relating to personnel, employment or labor law related 


matters shall be directed to the City Clerk/Personnel Director, unless such request 


pertains to the City Clerk/Personnel Director, in which case such request shall be 


directed to the Mayor. 


 


6. Written legal opinions from the City Attorney shall generally be provided to the 


Mayor, Alderpersons, end Department Heads, as deemed appropriate by the City 







 


Attorney, Mayor and requestor. In some cases, such as ethics opinions under Wis. 


Stat. § 19.59(5)(a), confidentiality rules may apply to legal opinions.· In some cases, 


distribution of communications with legal council may need to be restricted to protect 


the City's interests, as determined by the Mayor and/or City Council, in consultation 


with the City Attorney.  Written and verbal communications between City Officials 


and the City Attorney may also be privileged.  No person may disclose privileged 


communications without prior approval from the City Council or the Mayor. 


 








Meetings of:       COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Date//Time:       Tuesday, November 23, 2021, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to COVID-19.  
  You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone via Zoom:   
      https://zoom.us/j/93399805229?pwd=bXNWeWxQSFNEWTkrTVV1eUpzTGdvQT09 
  Meeting ID: 933 9980 5229 
  Passcode: 705419 
  Additional dial in information is located at the bottom of this agenda.                                                                                                                                        
  The meeting can also be livestreamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum  
  Channel 981. 
 
Members:          Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch,   
  Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa Reeves, Brett   
  Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM (EIGHT). 
The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608) 873-6677 or via email cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 
1.  Roll Call 


 
2.  Minutes and Reports 
     Finance (10/26/21); Plan Commission (10/11/21); River & Trails Task Force (9/13/21);           
     Sustainability (09/27/21); Tree Commission (10/14/21) 


 
3.  Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 
submit it by 6:30 p.m. on November 23, 2021. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


4.  Communications and Presentations  
 


5.  Consent Agenda 
A. November 9, 2021 Council Minutes 
B. R-169-2021 Resolution confirming the Mayor's Committee Appointment 


 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6.  R-170-2021 Request by Luke Campion for Conditional Use Permit approval for an Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment use (restaurant) at 177 W. Main Street.  (Plan Commission 
recommends unanimously) 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 
regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  
 



https://zoom.us/j/93399805229?pwd=bXNWeWxQSFNEWTkrTVV1eUpzTGdvQT09

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20%09%09%09Channel%20981

https://wsto.tv/live%20and%20Spectrum%20%09%09%09Channel%20981

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





7.  O-23-2021 Ordinance re park impact fees and fees in lieu of land dedication (Parks & Rec 
Committee recommends approval 4-0, Finance recommends approval 7-0, May 26, 2021) 


8.  ***Discussion and possible action regarding entering into an agreement for legal services with 
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP for the period beginning January 1, 2022 and ending December 31, 
2025. (Finance recommended 7-0 on November 9, 2021)*** 


9.  Reconvene in open session 
 
*** The City Council may convene in closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(e) for the purposes of 
deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or 
conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons deem a closed 
session necessary. The City Council may reconvene in an open session to discuss and take action on the 
subject matter discussed in the closed session*** 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 


 
Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: 
Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 


One tap mobile 
 +13126266799,,93399805229#,,,,*705419# US (Chicago) 
 +19292056099,,93399805229#,,,,*705419# US (New York) 
 Dial by your location 
         +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
         +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
         +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
         +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
         +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
         +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
 Meeting ID: 933 9980 5229 
 Passcode: 705419 
 Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aesp6sHmbg 


 


 



https://zoom.us/u/aesp6sHmbg



